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FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

STIPULATED ORDER FOR
PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND
MONETARY JUDGMENT FOR
BRIAN SCHOFIELD, INFINIUM,
INC. AND MARKET-REP.COM,
INC. D/B/A MARKET-REPS.COM,
INC.

Plaintiff,
VS.
ASSAIL, INC., ET AL.,

Defendants
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Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission ("Commission" or "FTC") filed its Complaint ~.
for a permanent injunction and other relief in this matter, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act™), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) and 57(b), the Telemarketing
and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act (“Telemarketing Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101 er
seq., and Section 522(a) of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (“GLB Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 6822(a),

charging that Defendants engaged in deceptive and unfair acts or practices in violation of Section

5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, the FTC’s Trade Regulaﬁon Rule, entitled “Telemarketing

Sales Rule,” 16 C.F.R. Part 310, and Section 521 of the GLB Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6821. The
Cormission and certain Defendants, as hereinafter defined, hereby stipulate to the entry of this
Sfipulated Order for Permanent Injunction and Monetary Judgment (“Order’;; to resolve all
matters of dispute between them in this action. |
IT IS THEREFORE STIPULATED, AGREED, AND ORDERED as follows:
~ FINDINGS ) |

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and the parties
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pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), 57(b), 6101(b), 6102(c), as well as 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,
1337(a), and 1345. |

2. Venue in this District is proper under 15 US.C. § 53(b) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)
and (c¢).

3. The activities of Defendants are in or affecting “commerce,” as that term is
defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

4. The Complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against
- Defendants under Sections 5(a), 13(b), and l§ of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), and

57(b).
| 5. Defendants have entered into this Order freely and without coercion. Defendants
further acknowledge that they have read the provisions of this Order and are prepared to abide by
them.

6. The undersigned, individually and by and through their counsel, have agreed that
the entry of this Order resolves all matters of dispute between them arising from the Complaint in
this action, up to the date of entry of this Order.

7. Defendants waive all rights to seek appellate review or otherwise challenge or
contest the validity of this Order. Defendants further waive and release any claim they may have
against the Commissioﬁ, its employees, representatives or agents.

8. Defendants agree that this Order does not entitle Defendants to seek or to obtain
aﬁomeys’ fees as a prevailing party under the Equal Access to J ustice Act, 28 U.S.C.. § 2412, as
amended by Pub. L. 104-121, 110 Stat. 847, 863-64 (19‘?6), and Defendants further waive any

/
right to attorneys’ fees that may arise under said provision of law.
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9. By entry of this Order, the Defendants do not admit to the allégati ons of the
Complaint other than the jurisdictional facts.

10.  Entry of this Order is in the public interest, and there being no just reason for
delay, the Clerk is directed to enter judgment immediately.

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this order, the following definitions shall apply:

1. *“Asset” means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim to, any real or
personal property, including but not limited fo chattel, goods, instruments, equipment, fixtures,
general intangiblés, effects, leaseholds, premises, contracts, mail or other deliveries, shares of
stock, lists of consumer names, inventory, checks, notes, accounts, credits, receivables, funds,
and all cash, wherever located.

2. Unless otherwise specified, "Defendants” means the Individual Defendant and the
Corporate Defendants. The “Individual Defendant” means Brian Schofield, individually, and as
an officer of the Corporate Defendants. The “Corporate Defendants” means Infinium, Inc., a;ld
Market-Rep.com, Inc. d/bfa Market-Reps.com, Inc.

| 3. “Document” is synonymous in meaning and equal in scope to the usage of the
term in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writings, drawings, graphs, charts,
photographs, audio and video recordings, c.omputer records, and other data compilations from i
which information can be obtained and translated, if necessary, into reasonably usable form
through détection devices. A draft or non-identical copy is a separate document within the

b

meaning of the term.
- j
4. “Plaintif” means the Federal Trade Commission.
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5. “Receiver” means Robb Evans & Associates, LLC, the permaﬁent receiver
appointed by the Court in this matter over the Schofield Receivership Defendants.

6. “Schofield Receivership Defendants” means Infinium, Inc.; Market-Rep.com,
Ihc.; d/b/a Market-Reps.com, Inc.; and any affiliates, fictitioﬁs names, subsidiaries, successors or
assigns of the aforementioned person or entity, and other persons or entities in active concert or
paﬁicipation'with them whether acting directly or through any trust, corporation, subsidiary,
division or other device, including but not limited to Allied Teleservices, Inc., Greentree
Holdings LLC., Vanity Works, Inc., Inﬁniumv Air LLC., Tele-Voice, CubSox Holdings, LLC, and
Knuckleball, Inc..

7. “Receivership Estate” meaﬁs all assets of the Schofield Receivership Defendants
and all proceeds from the sale of such assets, except those assets the sale of which the Receiver
in its sole and absolﬁte discretion determines will not add appreciably to the value of the estate.

8. T elemarketing” means any plan, program or campaign (whether or not covered
by the Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.E.R. Part 310) that is conducted to induce the purchase of
goods or services by means of the use of one or more telephones.

ORDER
I. BAN ON FUTURE TELEMARKETING ACTIVITIES

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendants are permanently restrained and enjoined

from engaging, participating, assisting, or facilitating in any manner or capacity whatsoever,

directly or indirectly, individually or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other

device, in any telemarketing of any kind.
' /
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II. PROHIBITION AGAINST MISREPRESENTATIONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in connection with the advertising, promotion,

offering for sale, or sale of goods or services by any means whatsoever, each of the Defendants,

and their successors, assigns, officers, agents, servants, employees, and those persons in active

concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service,

facsimile, or otherwise, whether acting directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division,

or other entity, are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from making, directly or by

implication, orally or in writing, any false or misleading representation or assisting others in

making any such false or misleading representation including any misrepresentation that:

A.

The Defendant is affiliated with MasterCard, any other credit card or debit card
company, or a bank or other financial institution;
The Defendant is contacting the consumer in response to a credit application made

by the consumer;

" After a consumer pays the Defendant a fee, the consumer is likely or is guaranteed

to receive a credit card, debit card, or any other payment card or device of any
kind;

The purchase of a credit card, debit card or other payment card or device from the
Defendant increases the likelihood that a consumer’s credit will improve and that
the consumer will get other offers for unsecured credit cards in the future; and |
After a consumer pays the Defcndaﬁt a fee, the consumer will receive, at no

additional charge, any discounted prbdu%ts or services.

/
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11l PROHIBITION AGAINST UNAUTHORIZED BILLING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in connection with the advertising, promotioh,
offering for sale, or sale of goods or services by any means whatsoever, each of the Defendants,
and their successors, assigns, ofﬁcgrs, agents, servants, employees, and those persons in active
concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service,
facsimile, or otherwise, whether acting directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division,
of other entity, are hereby pennarient}y restrained and enjoined from causing a consumcr’ks credit

or debit card to be charged or bank account to be debited:

A. Without having previously obtained the consumer’s express authorization for such
charge or debit;
B. Prior to receipt by the consumer of information about the product or service that

the Defendant represents the consumer will receive;

C. Prior to ‘the expiration of any free trial period;

D. Afier the Defendant has received a consumer request to cancel the purchase of
such product or service, unless the Defendant can show the charge or debit
occurred prior to receipt of the request to cancel; and

E. | After the consumer is denied thg ability to cancel the product or service through

the customer service number provided.

IV. COMPLIANCE WITH THE GRAMM LEACH BLILEY ACT

AV, LUV AN b, VY A A A A, Ay e A e S

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in connection with the advertising, promotion,
offering for sale, or sale of goods or services by any means whatsoever, each of the Defendants,

!
and their successors, assigns, officers, agents, servants, employees, and those persons in active
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concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by .personal service,
facsimile, or otherwise, whether acting directly or through ény corporation, subsidiary, division,
or other entity, are hereby restrained and enjoined from violating any provision of Section 521 of
the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6821, including but not limited to inducing consumers
to divulge their personal financial information by misrepresenting, expressly or by implication
that: |
A. The Defendant is affiiiated with, or calling from or on behalf of, a bank, financial
institution, or credit or debit card company; and
B. The Defendant already possesses, or is verifying, a consumer’s bank account
information.
V. MONETARY JUDGMENT
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that
A. The Defendants are jointly and severally liable for, and are ordered to pay, an $18
million monetary judgment to the FTC, which amount shall be suspended, but fof
a sum equal to the value of the Individual Defendant’s Memill Lynch CMA
Account #421-20W45 and all the assets of the Schofield Receivership Defendants
minus any costs associated with the work of the Receiver (hereinafter the “non-
suspended judgment”), which amount is approgimatély $200,000. The suspended
portion of the judgment shall be subject to the conditions set forth in Subsection C
of this Paragraph V.

B. All assets of the Individual Defendant 1i dted in Subsection A of this Paragraph V
not already in the possession and control of the Receiver shall be tumed over to
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the Recetver pursuant o Paragmpﬁ VI no later than five (5) ciay(s) after entry of
this Order.

The Commission’s agreement to this Order is expressly premised upon the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the sworn financial statements and
supporting documents dated June 24, 2003 provided to the Commission by the
Individual Defendant; the truthfulness, accuracy, and correctness of which was
attested to by the Individual Defendant on that date. These documents contain
material information upon which the Commission has relied in negotiating and
agreeing to this Order. If, upon motion by the Commission, this Court finds that
the Individual Defendant has failed to disclose any material asset or materially
misstated the value of any asset in the financial documents described above, or
has made any other material misstatement or omission in the financial documents
described above, the Court shall execute the Order attached as»Appendix A
imposing the full suspended monetary judgment set forth in Subsection A above
against the Defendants, make an express determination that there is no just reason
for delay in the entry of the judgment, and provide that the'judgmcnt shall be
immediately dué and payable. Interest on the judgment executed in Appendix A
shall be computed at the rate prescribed under 28 U.S.C. § 1969, as amended,
which shall be due from the date of entry of this Order, and Plaintiff shall Be
permitted to execute ﬁpon the judgment immediately and engage in discovery in

£

aid of execution.

!
/

In accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701, the Defendanté are hereby required, unless
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they have done so already, to furnish to the Commnission their .resp'ectivc taxpayer
identifying numbers (so;:ial security numbers and cmployer'identification
numbers) which shall be used for purposes of collecting and reportiné on any
delinquent amount arising out of Defendants’ relationship with the government.
The Individual Defendant is further required, unless he has done so already, to
provide the Commission with clear, legible and full-size photocopies of all valid
driver’s licenses that he possesses, which will be used for reporting and
compliance purposes. |

Défendants agree that the facts as alleged in the Complaint filed in this action
shall be taken as true in any subsequent litigation filed by the Commission to
enforce its rights pursuant to this Order, including, but not limited to, a non-
dischargeability complaint filed in any bankruptcy proceeding.

Proceedings instituted under this Paragraph are in addition to, and\not in lieu of,
any other civil or criminal remedies that may be»provided by law, including ar;y
other proceedings the Commission may initiate to enforce this Order.

The non-suspended judgment set forth herein may be used by the FTC and the
Receiver for the purpose of taking all neccssary. or appropriate post-judgment

~ collection steps, including But not limited to obtaining and levying writs of
execution and creating, perfecting, and enforcing judgment liens on any real or
personal property of the Defendants. The Clerk of the Court is hereby directed to
acccpt this Stipulated Order for Permaneht Injunction and Monetary Judgment

and the non-suspended judgment set forth herein for the purpose of issuing writs
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of execution, abstracts of judgment and any other post—judgmeﬁt process at the

request of the FTC or the Receiver. | |

" VI. COMMISSION’S USE OF MONETARY JUDGMENT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all funds paid té the Commission or its agent

pursuant to Paragraphs V and X V1I of this Order, may be deposited into a fund adminis.tered by
the Commission or its agent to be used for equitable relief, inclﬁding but not limited to consumer
redress and any attendant expenses for the administration of any redress fund. In the event that
direct redress to consumers is wholly or partié!ly impracticable or that funds remain after redress
is completed, the Commission may apply any remaining funds for such other equitable reliéf
(including consumer information remedies) as it determines to be reasonably related to
Defendants’ practices alleged in fhe Complaint. Any funds not used for such equitable relief
shall be deposited to the Unitéd States Treasury as dis gqrgemeﬁt. Defendants shall have no right
to challenge the Commission’s choice of remedies under this Paragraph.

VIL LIFTING OF THE ASSET FREEZE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A. The freeze of the Individual Defendant’s assets pursuant to the Preliminary
Injunction Order entered by this Court on February 4, 2003, shall be lifted to the
extent necessary to turn over assets as required by Paragraph V of this Order, and
upon completion of that transfer, shall be lifted pgrmanently.

B. .The freeze of the assets of the Schofield Receivership Defendants shall remain in

~ effect, except as necessary for the Recei\?é:r to liquidate all assets of the Schofield

Receivership Defendants, until the Receiver winds up all activities and operations
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of the Schofield Receivership Defendants pursuant to Pa.ragraﬁh XVII herein.

VIII. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ORDER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, each Defendant, within five (5) business days of

receipt of this Order as entered by the Court, shall submit to the Commission a truthful sworn

statement, acknowledging receipt of this Order.

IX. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry

of this Order

A,

The Corpurate Defendant shall deliver a copy of this Order to all principals,
officers, directors, managers, employees, agents, and representatives having
responsibilities subject to this Order, and shall secure from each such person a
signed and dated statement acknowledging receipt of the Order. The Corporate

Defendant shall deliver this Order to current personnel within thirty (30) days

‘after the date of service of this Order on the Corporate Defendant, and to new

~ personnel at the commencement of the employment relationship.

The Individual Defendant shall deliver either: (1) a copy of this Order, or (2) a
copy of an abridged version of this Order that contains a file stamped copy of the

cover page, a copy of the Court’s signature page, and a copy of Paragraphs I

through IV of this Order to the principals, officers, directors, managers, and

employees under the Individual Defendant’s control for any business that (a)
cmploys or contracts for personal serv1cé"s from the Ind1v1dual Defendant and (b)

has responsibilities with respect to the eub]ect matter of this Order. The

Page 11 of 28




Individual Defendant shall secure from each such person a si gﬁed and dated

statement acknowledging receipt of the Order within thirty (30) days after the date

of service of the Order or the commencement of the employment relationship.

X. COMPLIANCE REPORTING BY DEFENDANTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in order that compliance with the provisions of this

Order may be monitored:

A. For a period of fi ve (5) years from the date of entry of this Order:

1. The Individual Defendant shall notify the Commission in writing of any of

the following:

a.

Any'changes in residence, mailing addresses and telephone
numbers of the Individual Defendant, within thirty (30) days of the
date of such change;

Any change in employment status (including self-employment) of
the ]ndividhél Defendant, and any change in the ownership interestb
of the Individual Defendant in any business entity, within thirty

(30) days of such change. Such notice shall include the name and

, addre.ss of each business that the Individual Defendant is affiliated

with, employed by, or performs services for, a statement of the
nature of the business, and a statement of the Individual

Defendant’s duties and responsibilities in connection with the

business or employment; dnd
]

Any changes in the Individual Defendant’s name or use of any
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aliases or fictitious names; and
All Defendants shall notify the Commission of any changes in the
structure of the Corporate befendant, or any business entity that the
Individual Defendant directly or indirectly controls, or has an ownership
interest in, that may affect compliance obligations arising under this Order,
including but not limited to a dissolution, assignment, sale, merger, or
other action that would result in the emergence of a successor corporation;
the creation or dissolution of a subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages
in any acts or practices subject to this Order; the filing of a bankruptcy.
petition; or a change in the corporate ﬁame or address, at least thirty (30)
days prior to such change, provided4 that, with respect to any proﬁosed
change in tf)é business entity about which the Defendant learns less than
thirty (30) days prior to the date such action is to take place, the Defendant
shall notify the Commission as soon as is practicable after obtaining such

knowledge;

One hundred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of this Order, and each year

thereafter on the same date, through and including January 1, 2010, the Individual

Defendant shall provide a written report to the Commission, sworn to under

penalty of perjury, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which the

Individual Defendant has complied and is complying with this Order. This report

shall include but not be limited to:

L.

: i
The then-current residence address, mailing addresses and telephone
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numbers of the Individual Defendant;

2. The then-current employment and business addresses and telephone
numbers of the Individual Defendant, a description of the business
activities of each such employer or business, and the title and
vresponsibilities of the Individual Defendant, for each such employer or

" business; |

3. A statement of the Individual Defendant’s then-current businesé income
and expenses, incl udin.g a copy of the Individual Defendant’s income tax
returns with returns for any corporations or businesses owned, controlled
or operated by the Individual Defendant or on the Individual Defendant’s
behalf;

4. A statement describing the manner in which the Individual Defendant has
comp?ied and is cdmplying with Paragraphs I-XV of this Order; and

5. A copy of each acknowledgment of receipt of this Order obtained by the .
Individual Defendant pursuaﬁt to Paragraph IX of this Order;

For the purposes of this Order, the Individual Defendant shall, unless otherwise

directed by a rgpresentative of the Commission, identify all written notifications

to the FTC as being in reference to FTC v. Assail et. al, United States District

Court, Western District of Texas, Waco Division, Case No. W03CA007, and mail

them to:
Associate Directof

Division of Marketing Practices
Federal Trade Commission
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600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Rm. 238 ‘
Washington, DC 20580 '

For the purposes of this Paragraph; “employment” includes the performance of
services as an employee, consultant, or independent contractor; and “employers”
include any individual or entity for whom the Individual Defendant performs
services as an employee;, consultant, or independent contractor; and

For purposes of the compliance reporting required by this Paragraph, the
Commission is authorized to communicate directly with the Individual Defendant,

in writing, with a copy to counsel of record.

X1. MONITORING COMPLIANCE OF SALES PERSONNEL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in connection with any business that the Individual

Defendant directly or indirectly manages, controls or has a majority ownership interest in, the

Individual Defendant is hereby restrained and enjoined from:

A

Failing 1o take reasonable steps sufficient to monitor and ensure that all
employees and independent contractors engéged in sales or other éustorher service
functions comply with Paragraphs II-IV and XV of this Order. Such steps shall
include monitoring of sales presentations with customers, and shall also include,
at a minimuim, tﬁc following: (1) random, blind testing of the oral representations
made by persons eﬁgaged in sales 01; other customer service functions; (2)
establishing a procedure for receiving and responding to consumer complaints;
and (3) ascertaiﬁing the number and natu;e of consumer complaints regarding

transactions in which each employee or inidependent contractor is involved;
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Failing promptly to invcstigafe fully any consumer complaint fcccived by any
business to which this Paragraph applies;

Failiﬁg to take any corrective action with respect to any sales person whom the
Individual Defendant determines is not complying with this Order, which may
include training, disciplining, and/or terminating such sales person; and

Failing to keep records of consumer complaints and the monitoring of consumer

complaints.

XI1. RECORD-KEEPING PROVISIONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of eight (8) years from the date of entry

of this Order, in connection with any business that the Individual Defendant directly or indirectly

manages, controls or has a majority ownership interest in, Defendants and their agents,

employees, officers, corporations, successors, and assigns, and those persons in active concert or

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service, facsimile or

otherwise, are hereby restrained and enjoined from failing ta create and retain the following

records:

A.

Accounting records that reflect the cost of goods or servicés sold, revenues
generated, and the disbursement of such revenues;

Personnel records accurately reflecting: the name, address, and telephone number
of each person employed in any capacity by such business, including as an
independent contractor; that person's job title or position; the date upon which the

person commenced work; and the date and reason for the person's termination, if

i

applicable;
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Customer files containing the names, addresses, phone numbérs, dollar amounts
paid, quantity of items or sewiceé purchased, and description of items or services
purchased, to the extent such information is obtained in the ordinary course of
business;

Complaints and refund requests (whether received directly, indirectly or through
any third party) and any responses to those complaints or requests;

Copies of all sales scripts, training materials, advertisements, or other marketing
materials, including e-mail and Intemet websites or web pages, regarding any
good, service, company or web site disseminated by the Defendant to any person;
and

All records and documeﬁt‘s necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each

~provision of this Order.

XIII. ACCESS TO BUSINESS PREMISES

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry

of this Order, for the purposes of determining or securing compliance with its provisions, each of

the Defendants, and their agents, employees, officers, corporations, SUCCessors, and assigns, and

those persons or entities in active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of

this Order by personal service, facsimile or otherwise, shall permit representatives of the

Commission, within three (3) business days of receipt of written notice from the Commission,

access during normal business hours to any office or facility storing documents of any business,

that the Defendant directly or indirectly manages, contrdls or has a majority interest in. In

providing such access, the Defendants shall permit representatives of the Commission to inspect
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and copy all documents relevant to any fnatter contained in this Order, and shall permit
represeﬁtatives of the Commission to remove such documents for a pericd not to exceed ten (10)
business days so that the documents may be inspected, inventoried, and copicd.
XIV. COMMISSION’S AUTHORITY TO MONITOR COMPLIANCE
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring and |
investigating compliance with any provision of this Order:
A. Within ten (10) da‘ys of rec;eipt of written notice from a representative of the
Commission, eacﬁ :‘of thc;, Defelhdants each shall submit additional written reports,
- sworn to under penalty éf perjury, produce documents for inspection and copying,
and appear for deposition.
B. In addition, the Comrrﬁssion is authorized to monitor compliance with this Order
by all other lawful means, including but not limited to the following:

1. Obtaining discovery from any person, without further leave of court, using
the procedures prescribed by Fed. R. Civ. P. 30, 31, 33, 34, 36, and 45; |
and

2. Posing as consumers and suppliers to: Defendants, Defendants’
employees, or any other entity xﬁanaged or controlled in whole or in part
by Defendants, without the necessity of ide_htiﬁcation or prior notice; and

Provided, however, that nothing in this Order shall limit the Commission’s lawful use of
compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49, 57b-
>I, to obtain any documentary material, tangible tings, testimony, or information relevant

to unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce (within the meaning of
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15 U.S.C. § 45(a)(1)).

C. Defendants shall permit representatives of the Commission to interview any
employer, consultant, independent contractor, representative, officer, agent, or
employee who has agreed to such an interview, relating in any way to any conduct
subject to this Order. The person interviewed may have counsel présent.

XV. PROHIBITIONS INVOLVING CONSUMER LISTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, and their officers, agents, servants,
employees, and attorneys, and all other persons or entities in active concert or particifuation with
them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service, faésimile, or otherwise, are
hereby permanently restrained-and enjoined from selling, renting, leasing, transferring, or
otherwise disclosing the name, address, telephone number, credit card number, bank account
number, e-mail address, or other identifying information of any person which was obtained by
any Defendant at any time prior to entry of this Order, in connection with the advertising,
promotion, marketing, offering for sale, or sale of any good or service; provided, however, that
Defendants may disclose such identifying information to a law enforcement agency, or as

required by any law, regulation or court order.
XV1. RECEIVERSHIP PROVISIONS
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that Robb ﬁvans & Associates, LLC is appointed as
permanent receiver, with the full power of an equity receiver, for the Séhoﬁéid Receivership

Defendants, and of all the funds, properties, premises, accounts and other assets directly or

indirectly owned, beneficially or otherwise, by the Schofield Receivership Defendants, with
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_directions and authority to accomplish the followin g
A. Maintain full control of the Schofield Receivership Defendants;

- B. Maintain custody, control, and possession of all assets and documents, including
the funds, property, premises, accounts, mail and other assets of, or in the
possession or under the control of, the Schofield Receivership Defendants,
wherever situated, the income and profits therefrom, and all sums of money now
or hereafter due or owing to the Schofield Receivership Defendants, with full
poweri to: collect, receive and take possession of all assets and documents,
including goods, chattels, rights, credits, monies, effects, lands, leases, books and
records, work papers, and records of accounts, including computer-maintained
information, contracts, financial records, monies on hand in banks and other
financial institutions, and other papers and documents of the Schofield
Receivership Defendants and customers of the Schofield Receivership Defendants
whose interests are now held by or under the direction, possession, custody, or

control of the Schofield Receivership Defendants;

C. Continue performing all acts necessary to locate and preserve the value of those
assets, in order to prevent any irreparable loss, damage or injury to customers of
the Schofield Receivership Defendants, and all acts incidental thereto, including

the suspension of operations;

D. Enter into agreements in connection wit}; administration of the Receivership

Estate, including, but not limited to: (1) the retention and employment of outside
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‘investigators, attorneys or accountants of the Receiver's choice to assist, advise,
and represent the Receiver with approval of the Court; (2) the movement and
storage of any equipment, fumniture, reéords, files, or other physical property of
the Schofield Receivership Defendants ; and (3) the retenfion of auctioneers or
other professionals to assist in the liquidation of the Schofield Receivership

Defendants’ assets;

Institute, prosecute, compromise, adjust, int_ervenc in or become party to such
actions or proceedjngs in state, federal, or foreign courts that the Receiver deems
necessary and ’advisable to preserve or increase the value of the Receivership
Estate, or that the Receiver deems necessary and advisable to carry out the
Receiver's mandate under this Order, and likewise to defend, compromise, or
adjust or otherwise dispose of any or all actions or proceedings instituted against
the Receiver or the Schofield Recéivership Defendants that the Receiver deems
necessary and advisable to preserve the assets of the Schofield Receivership
Defendants or that the Receiver deems necessary and advisable to carry out the‘

Receiver's mandate under this Order;

Liquidate assets of the Schofield Receivership Defendants and all assets
‘transferred to the Receiver in accordance with the terms of this Order or any prior
or subsequent order of this Court; and to transfer receivership property to storage

facilities, cancel leases, and reject and enter contracts; and
» »
To execute all bills of sale and deeds to personal and real property belonging to or
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coming into the possession of the Schofield Receivership Defendants.

H. Immediately enforce the non-suspended judgment set forth in Paragraph V by
taking all necessary or appropriate post-judgment collection steps, including but
not limited to obtaining and levying writs of execution and creating, perfecting

and enforcing judgment liens on any real or personal property of the Defendants.

L Immediately enforce the executed suspended j'udgment set forth in Par'agraph‘ Vif
such judgment is executed by the Court by taking all necessary or appropriate
postqudgment collection stepé, inclu_diﬁg but not limited to obtaining and Ievyih g
writs of execution and creating, perfecting and enforqing judgment liens on any

real or personal property of the Defendants.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, tc the extent they are not inconsistent with this
Order, all powers granted to the Receiver pursuant to the Court’s Preliminary Injunction Order of

February 4, 2003, shall remain in full force and effect.

XVIIL. WINDING UP OF SCHOFIELD RECEIVERSHIP DEFENDANTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Receiver shall liquidate all assets of the Schofield
Receivership Defendants’ and wind up all activities and operations of the Schofield Receivership
- Defendants and their subsidiaries and affiliated entities. Upon approval of the Court, and the
Court’s issuance of an Order for Final Payment, the Receiver shall transfer to the Commission or
its agent all funds in the Receivership Estate, less unpaid fees ana expenses as allowed by the

Court, as set forth in Paragraph V of this Order. f
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XVIli. COMPENSATION OF THE RECEIVER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Receiver aﬁd. those he employs are entitled to
reasonable compensation for the perforrnancé of their duties pursuant to this Ordef and for the
costs of actual out-of-pocket expenses incutred by them, from the Schofield Receivership
Defendants’ aséets held by or in the possession or control of, or which may be received by, the
Receiver or the Schofield Rgccivership Defendants. The Receiver may pay its non-member

employees and independent contractors on an ongoing basis.

XIX. TERMINATION OF RECEIVERSHIP

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the Receiver shall, if he has not already done so, file
his final application for fees with respect to the Schofield Receivership Defendants within 180
days of the execution of this Order, unless good cause is shown to extend the receivership
beyond 180 days. The Receiver’s final application for fees for the Schofield Receivership
Defendants shall be served upon the parties through counsel. Plaintiff may object Within 15 days
of receipt, but Defendants shall have no right to object. Upon submission of the Receiver’s final
application or upon this Court’s Order for Final Payment, whichever is later, and subject to the

terms set forth in Paragraph XVII herein, the receivership shall terminate.

XX. COOPERATION WITH RECEIVER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the undersi gned shall cooperate fully with the
Receiver in: (A) pursuing any and all claims by the Receiver against other persons ot entitiés;
(B) assisting the Receiver in defending any and all actions or claims brought against the

Receiver, the Receivership Estate or the Schofield Recefvership Defendants by other persons or
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entities; (C) executing any documents necessary to transfer assets or owners}up interests to the
Receiver pursuant to the terms of this Order; and (D) reframmg from any act that would mterferé
or impede the Receiver in execution of the performance of his duties. Cooperation by the
Individual Defendant does not include the waiving of his constitutional n ghts agaihst self-
incrimination, and right to coungcl. No portion of this Order shall abridge the Individual

Defendant’s constitutional rights.

~ XXI. FEES AND COSTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each party to this Order hereby agrees to bear its own
costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with this action. Counsel for the Defendants
may make an attorneys fee application to the Court for fees related to the representation of the

Defendants in this action to be paid from the Receivership Estate.

XXII. RETENTION OF J QBISDICTION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for

purposes of construction, modification and enforcement of this Order.

XXII1. SEVERABILITY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the provisions of this Order are separate and severable
from one another. If any provision is stayed or detefmined to be invalid, the remaining provisions

éhall remain in full force and effect.
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XXIV. COMPLETE SETTLEMENT

The parties hereby consent to entry of the foregoing Order which shall constitute a final
judgment and order in this matter. The parties further stipulate and agree that the entry of the

foregoing order shall constitute a full, complete, and final settlement of this action.

IT IS SO ORDERED: | M 2
DATE: 23/03 J

WALTER S. SMITH JR.
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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ATTORNEYS FOR P
FEDERAL TRADE SSKﬂQ

Robert S. Kaye (MD Bar # 160446929)
Jonathan Kraden (N.Y. Bar # 2847853)
Lawrence Hodapp (D.C. Bar # 221309)
Federal Trade Commission '
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20580

Tel. (202) 326-2215; 326-3105; 326- 3257
Fax (202) 326-3395

James W. Jennings, Jr.

Assistant United States Attorney
601 N.W. Loop 410, Suite 600
San Antonio, Texas 78216

Tel. (210) 384-7330

Fax (210) 384-7322

Texas Bar No. 10641400
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FOR THE DEFENDANTS:

' T LA//M " Date: 7722 (’;’7

A 4

BRIAN SCHOFIELD, md idually

2 . %/ﬁ Date: 7~ - 1;"3

BRIAN SCHOFIELD, / s president of Infinium, Inc.

- 6/ ﬂ Dater_ 722~ Dousy

, as pre31dent of Market-Rep.Com, Inc. d/b/a Market-Reps.Com, Inc.

Date:____ /- /4- 03

1105 Wooded Acres Drive
Suite 630

Waco, TX 76710

Tel. (254)-776-3980

FOR THE RECEIVER:

Date:

ROBB EVANS, for Robb Evans & Associates, LLC
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FOR THE DEFENDANTS:

Date:
BRIAN SCHOFIELD, individually

Dé.te:
BRIAN SCHOFIELD, as president of Infinium, Inc.

Date:

BRIAN SCHOFIELD, as president of Market-Rep.Com, Inc. d/b/a Market-Reps.Com, Inc.

Date:

ATTORNEY FOR THE DEFENDANTS
Robert Swanton -

1105 Wooded Acres Drive

Suite 630

Waco, TX 76710

Tel. (254)-776-3980

Datezzg‘é/)’: ‘Z‘(ﬂ}

ROBB EVANS, for Robb Evans & Associates, LLC

w
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APPENDIX A

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS, WACO DIVISION

) Civ. No. W03CA007
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, ) FINAL MONETARY JUDGMENT
Plaintiff ) AS TO DEFENDANTS BRIAN
' SCHOFIELD, INFINIUM, INC.
vs. ) AND MARKET-REP.COM, INC.
) D/B/A MARKET-REPS.COM, INC.
ASSAIL, INC.,ET AL., )
Defendants )

)

After consideration of the evidence presented by the Commission in its Motion to Impose
Suspended Judgment and the Response, if any, of Defendants Brian Schofield, Infinium, Inc., and
Market-Rep.com, Inc. d/b/a Market-Reps.com, Inc. thereto:

IT IS ORDERED, that the suspended portion of the previously ordered $18 million
monetary judgment, in the amount of $ million is hereby imposed as a judgment
against Brian Schofield, Infinium, Inc;, and Market-Rep.com, Inc. d/b/a Market-Reps.com, Inc.,
jointly and severally, and the Plaintiff may execute upon such judgment immediately and engage

in discovery in aid of execution.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED; pursuant to Fed. R.'Civ. P. 54(b), that there is no just

reason for delay and the Clerk of the Court shall immediately enter this Order as a final order.

IT IS SO ORDERED, this . dayof 20__.

WALTER S. SMITH JR.
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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